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TCCIA INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

“TCCIA Co.” or “The Company”

A public company incorporated in the United Republic of Tanzania with 
Certificate of Incorporation No. 38280 registered on 9th November 1999



Dated Monday 29th August 2005

“CAUTION”

A copy of this prospectus has been delivered to the Capital Markets and Securities Authority for approval and the Registrar of Companies for registration.

The securities offered have not been approved or disapproved by the Capital Markets and Securities Authority.

Prospective investors should carefully consider the matters set forth under the caption “Risk Factors” in Section B2 on page 23 to 24.
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THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION IF YOU ARE IN DOUBT AS TO THE MEANING OF THIS PROSPECTUS OR WHAT ACTION TO TAKE, PLEASE CONSULT YOUR BANKER, STOCKBROKER, ADVOCATE, ACCOUNTANT, LICENSED INVESTMENT ADVISER OR OTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISER IMMEDIATELY

[image: image8.emf] 


This document is NOT FOR SALE

PROSPECTUS

IN RESPECT to an issue of 14,000,000 ordinary shares of the TCCIA Investment Company Limited (TCCIA Co.) 
at a price of TZS 250/= per share representing 35% of the total authorized share capital.

Opening date of the issue 
 





Monday 5th September 2005
Closing date of the issue 






Friday 23rd September 2005

Allotment of shares


            




Monday 26th September 2005

Issue of Share Certificates
 
            




Monday 31st October 2005
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Note: This offer period shall not be extended.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

TCCIA INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Second Floor, Twiga House

Samora Avenue,

P.O. Box 9713,

Dar es Salaam, TANZANIA

Tel:
+255-22-2119436/2128136

Fax:
+255-22-2119437

Email:
hq@tccia.com
Website:www.tccia.com
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TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

In this prospectus, and the appendices hereto, unless otherwise indicated, the words in the first column have the meanings stated opposite them in the second column. Words in the singular include the plural and vice versa; words importing one gender include the other gender and references to a person include references to a body corporate and vice versa:

“CMSA” or “the Authority”
Capital Markets and Securities Authority, established by Capital Markets Act 1994 (Act No. 5 of 1994)

“The company” 
or “TCCIA Co.”    
TCCIA Investment Company Limited (Incorporation Certificate number 38280)

“DSE”



The Dar es Salaam Stock Exchange

 “Government”


The Government of the United Republic of Tanzania

 “IPO”



Initial Public Offer

“Member”


All the members of TCCIA

 “NMB”



National Micro Finance Bank Limited

“Prospectus”


an issue document of TCCIA Co. shares to the current members

“Share(s)”
issued and fully paid ordinary share(s) of TZS 250/= each in the share capital of the Company

 “Tanzania”


The United Republic of Tanzania

 “The public issue”
the public issue to members of TCCIA by the Company of 14,000,000 shares in terms of this prospectus

“Transfer secretary”
the transfer secretary of TCCIA Co. who is also the company secretary

“Chamber”


Tanzania Chamber of Commerce, Industry and Agriculture

“Rabobank Nederland”
Cooperative Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B. A

“NICO”



National Investments Company Limited

“Exim Bank”


The Exim Bank (Tanzania) Limited

“Consortium”
a group of investors led by Rabobank Nederland formed for the purpose of acquiring the shares in the NMB and comprising Rabobank Nederland, Exim Bank, NICO and TCCIA Co.

“TZS”



Tanzania Shillings

“USD”



United States Dollar

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

BACKGROUND TO THE SHARE ISSUE

The TCCIA Investment Company Limited (TCCIA Co.) is a public limited liability company established by the Tanzania Chamber of Commerce Industry and Agriculture (TCCIA) in efforts to make the TCCIA self financing as well as enabling TCCIA members take a leading role in the ownership and management of Tanzanian economy. TCCIA Co. is also aiming to facilitate the participation of the TCCIA members in the Tanzanian economy by creating a vehicle through which TCCIA members can own shares in public companies currently being privatized as well as those coming for the listing at the Dar es Salaam Stock Exchange (DSE).  In particular, TCCIA Co.’s mission is to provide a vehicle for collective ownership of commercial enterprises by TCCIA members capable of generating returns to its members as shareholders of companies where TCCIA Co. will invest the funds collected. The company will also assist TCCIA members diversify their investment portfolio by providing additional avenue to enhance their returns through investing in companies, which have been privatized or are yet to be privatized.

TCCIA Co. serves as a pool for harnessing financial resources, currently from TCCIA members and later on from the general public at an appropriate time and environment. TCCIA has a total of 7,542 members distributed in the regions and districts as indicated in appendix I. These members are financially weak individually. Pooling their efforts collectively, they are capable of raising substantial sums and are willing to participate in collective investments and ownership of blocks of shares in state owned enterprises that have partially been privatized or are yet to be privatized. In addition, TCCIA Co. shall be a members’ vehicle to facilitate partnerships with foreign investors in joint ventures on behalf of members in exploring various business opportunities. The major goal is to build up a large mutual investment capital to permit TCCIA members through TCCIA Co. to acquire voting rights in the enterprises in which TCCIA Co. shall participate.

The company was incorporated on 9th November 1999. The founder members have contributed TZS 25,650,000/=. The Initial Public Offer, which opened on 21st March 2005 and closed on 22nd April 2005, realized TZS 188,340,000. The part of the money realized have been invested in fixed deposit pending the final position of the TCCIA and its consortium partners in the NMB bid. The balance sheet attached indicates the financial position of the company after the IPO.

NATURE OF BUSINESS

TCCIA Co.’s principal activities remain to be investing in enterprises in industrial sector, financial services, telecommunications, agriculture, mining and in the service sectors.

TCCIA Co. shall acquire shares of enterprises in which Government is divesting in the aforementioned sectors, participate in the secondary market activities at the DSE whenever there is a profitable opportunity as well as endeavour to make inroads in areas so far untouched by government such as mining.

In addition to the above, TCCIA Co. has the duty to encourage a savings and investment culture, currently among its members and later to other Tanzanians when the company is opened to them in the future. TCCIA Co. intends to launch various collective investment funds in which interested Tanzanians will participate.
THE ISSUE OF SHARES
TCCIA Co. is re-issuing 14,000,000 shares of the company representing 35% of its authorized share capital at a price of TZS 250/= per share. This re-issue follows the previous issue which ran from March 2005 to 22nd April 2005 realizing TZS 188,340,000/=. Prior to this re-issue, TCCIA Co. made a split of its par value from TZS 1,000/= to TZS 250/= per share.
The proceeds of the issue are intended to form a capital contribution by TCCAI Co. towards the acquisition of its 5% stake in NMB, after the consortium led by Rabobank Nederland won the NMB offer. TCCIA Co. has 5% in the consortium. The proportionate shareholding and details of the consortium members is indicated below:

	Name of Consortium Member
	Number of Shares
	% of Shareholding in the Company

	Rabobank Nederland
	500,000
	25%

	Exim Bank
	280,000
	14%

	NICO
	100,000
	5%

	TCCIA Co.
	100,000
	5%

	TOTAL
	980,000
	49%


The opportunity to participate in this issue of shares is open exclusively to all members of TCCIA. 

OBJECTIVES OF THE ISSUE OF SHARES

The specific objective of the share issue is to raise capital for the acquisition of 5% stake in NMB. In the event of oversubscription, the excess funds will be used to acquire additional NMB shares in case some of the consortium partners fail to exhaust their apportioned stake or for other investments which have been earmarked by the TCCIA Co. investment committee. 

NMB is the largest bank in the country as far as branch network is concerned. NMB is a market leader in attracting deposits from small savers given its branch network. NMB will also continue to lead other banks as all government funds to the regions and districts are channelled to these areas through NMB. This is strength as the fee income arising from this service increased by 84.4% in 2004 when compared to 2003, and contributed 15% of the NMB total income. Lending is currently limited to salaried staff only. During the year to December 2004, the lending portfolio stood at TZS 82.17 billion. The net interest income rose from TZS 16.1billion in 2003 to TZS 35.21 billion in 2004, a handsome 119% increase.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHAREHOLDING

Share Capital


Number of authorized ordinary shares


             





40,000,000

Number of issued and fully paid up ordinary shares




     

     855,960
Number of new shares offered for sale at 250/= per share
                

  

  
14,000,000
Gross proceeds to be raised (TZS)


                     

       

        3,500,000,000



STATEMENTS CONCERNING FINANCIAL STATEMENT

TCCIA Co. is issuing shares exclusively to TCCIA members to raise capital for the 
purpose of acquiring its stake in NMB. 
DIVIDEND POLICY

TCCIA Co. is a new corporate vehicle, which has very far reaching ambitions. In order to participate effectively in its envisaged program, TCCIA Co. requires substantial resources from its shareholders as well as from potential lending sources. In addition, the company has no track record. In becoming members of TCCIA Co. the shareholders buy into a vision of participating in enormous NMB growth potential as well as long-term prospects of the company. The directors’ policy on dividends is therefore to retain a sizeable proportion of earnings and grow the company for a foreseeable future in other areas including units, Tanzania Portland Cement Company and any other privatizations in order to avail opportunities to TCCIA members to have a stake in Tanzanian economy. The company expects to start paying 50% dividend payout ratio for the first three years and the rate will be reviewed from time to time depending on the performance of the investments. 
DETAILS OF THE PUBLIC ISSUE 


Offer price per share (TZS)







       

             250
Number of share on sale








                            14,000,000
Total capital to be raised (TZS) 






                                    3,500,000,000


MINIMUM NUMBER OF APPLICATION SHARES

The minimum subscription is 100 shares and multiples of 10 thereafter.

ALLOTMENT POLICY

The offer’s primary objective is to provide an opportunity for TCCIA members to purchase 5% of NMB shares. In case of over-subscription, all applicants shall be allotted in full the number of shares applied for, provided that the aggregate subscription does not exceed the total authorized share capital.  

In the event TCCIA Co. shareholders are not able to fully subscribe for the shares offered, NICO will be allowed to buy the remaining portion of 5% of NMB shares offered to TCCIA Co.
IMPORTANT TIMES AND DATES


Opening date of the issue 
 
8:00 am




Monday 5th September 2005

Closing date of the issue 

5:00 pm




Friday 23rd September 2005

Allotment of shares


            




Monday 26th September 2005

Issue of Share Certificates
 
            




Monday 31st October 2005


LISTING ON THE DAR ES SALAAM STOCK EXCHANGE

A listing of TCCIA Co. shares on the Dar es Salaam Stock Exchange has not been applied for because TCCIA Co. is a new company without track record required for listing at the DSE. Currently, there is no exit mechanism. It is intended that a listing of TCCIA Co. shares at the DSE will be sought within the foreseeable future.

COPIES OF THE PROSPECTUS

Additional Copies of this prospectus may be obtained during business hours from 8.00 am Monday 5th September 2005 until 5:00 pm on Friday 23rd September 2005 from the CRDB Bank branches as listed in appendix II, all TCCIA regional and district chambers as listed in appendix I and TCCIA Co. headquarters located at:

Second Floor, Twiga House

Samora Avenue

P.O. Box 9713, 

Dar es Salaam, TANZANIA

Tel:

+255-22-2119436/2128136

Fax:

+255-22-2119437

Email:

hq@tccia.com
Website:
www.tccia.com
LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

9th August 2005

Dear fellow members of TCCIA, 

In March 2005, TCCIA made another history by issuing 2,000,000 shares to its members towards raising capital for the operationalisation of TCCIA Co. The offer period ran from 21st March 2005 to 22nd April 2005. The offer was not successful as only TZS 188,340,000/= were collected during the offer period. At that time, we were not sure whether we would be shortlisted for the bid to acquire NMB. As I am writing to you now, we have already initialled the sale agreement to acquire 5% in NMB at the cost of TZS 3.5 billion. NMB is a good investment by all standards. The bank has shown impressive performance based on the information availed to us during the period we were doing due diligence for the bidding process. As the earlier IPO was not successful, I am writing again to invite you my fellow members to join hands in acquiring 5% stake in NMB. This issue has been necessary as under the current Capital Markets and Securities Act, 1994, it is not possible to use the earlier prospectus. It is in light of the above that we are issuing 3,500,000 shares at the same price of TZS 1,000 per share to acquire our stake. Unlike in March when we had no information that we had been successful in the acquisition of NBM, this time around we are writing in confidence that we have been offered 5% stake in NMB. I take this opportunity to urge my fellow TCCIA members to take up the opportunity as it will assist us in turning around the TCCIA and indeed our members’ welfare. The time required to raise the funds is very short and limited. We are required to pay for our stake by 23rd September 2005. It is therefore important and urgent that members subscribe to the issue in order to enable TCCIA Co. acquire its stake in NMB. 

As I mentioned in the previous prospectus, this initiative is envisaged to enhance economic empowerment of the members and facilitate chamber’s financial independence.

My fellow members of TCCIA, privatization of NMB has taken a different approach in the sense that the government issued a condition for the foreign strategic investor to team up with local investors in bidding for 49% shares in NMB. In order to be able to participate in this exercise, TCCIA Co. is issuing 3.5 million shares exclusively for all its members. TCCIA believes that this is a unique opportunity to its members to participate in the privatization process as well as to have stake in the national economy. The funds being raised will be invested exclusively in the NMB as this is the amount required to pay for our stake.

The Board of Directors of TCCIA Co. is dedicated to professional fund management as well as very careful selection of the investments in which the capital of the company will be risked so that in addition to its strategic objective, the company is able to generate a return to the shareholders’ capital in the medium and long term. To achieve this, TCCIA Co Ltd will utilize the services of licensed investment advisers, namely African Banking Corporation (ABC) and Investment Committee comprising of well versed business professionals in Tanzania. 

I wish on behalf of the Board of Directors of TCCIA Co. Ltd to invite each one of you once again to actively take part in this issue in order to achieve the above mentioned objective. 

Yours Sincerely,
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Mr. Aristablus Elvis Musiba,

CHAIRMAN of TCCIA Investment Company Limited &

PRESIDENT of TCCIA

SECTION A - TCCIA Co. OBJECTIVES AND MANAGEMENT PROFILE

A1:
OBJECTIVES OF THE ISSUE OF SHARES

The specific objective of the share issue is to raise capital for the acquisition of 5% stake in NMB. NMB is the largest bank in the country as far as branch network is concerned. NMB is a market leader in attracting deposits from small savers given its branch network. NMB will also continue to lead other banks as all government funds to the regions and districts are channelled to these areas through NMB. This is strength as the fee income arising from this service increased by 84.4% in 2004 when compared to 2003, and contributed 15% of the NMB total income. Lending is currently limited to salaried staff only. During the year to December 2004, the lending portfolio stood at TZS 82.17 billion. The net interest income rose from TZS 16.1billion in 2003 to TZS 35.21 billion in 2004, representing a vibrant increase of 119%.

A2:
DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT

2.1
DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors is the highest policy making organ of TCCIA Co. As presently constituted, the Board consists of the following Tanzanian directors:

Mr. Aristablus Elvis Musiba (Chairman)

Mr. A. E. Musiba (54) is the President of Tanzania Chamber of Commerce, Industry and Agriculture (TCCIA). He is the Chairman of Tanzania Private Sector Foundation (TPSF) and Managing Director of Prodeco. Mr. Musiba studied Accountancy and qualified as Certified Accountants (ACCA) UK. He is also qualified as a member of Institute of Bookkeepers, London and Association of Accountants in East Africa, Nairobi. Mr. Musiba is a registered member of National Board of Accountants and Auditors (NBAA). He has served as an accountant in various government departments and parastatals (1972 – 1980). He then joined a private firm City Audit Bureau (1980 – 1986) and thereafter he moved to private business. Mr. Musiba is a Board Member of Parastatal Pension Fund (PPF), Inter University Council of East Africa, Board of External Trade (BET), Ngorongoro Conservation Area Authority (NCAA), University College of Lands and Architectural Studies (UCLAS), Safeline Travels Ltd, Sematel International, Exclusive Lodge & Resorts Ltd, Global Distance Learning Centre and Pangea Securities (EA) Limited. Mr. Musiba is a member of the Rotary Club and Yatch Club. He is also the most celebrated Kiswahili Novels in East Africa.

Mr. Mariot Kalanje (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Mariot Kalanje (72) is past Executive Director of Tanzania Chamber of Commerce, Industry and Agriculture having worked with the chamber since 1993. He is an economist with a B.A (Economics) degree and an M. A. (Economics) degree from University of Dar es Salaam. He has worked as Deputy Treasury Accountant in the Ministry of Finance (1956 – 1960); Town Clerk, Municipal Councils (1960 – 1962); General Manager, National Agricultural Corporation and National Development Corporation (1962 - 1968); General Manager, Tanzania Wood Corporation (1971 – 1974); Managing Director and General Manager of General Merchants of Tanzania and United Timber Company Ltd (1976 – 1986) and (1986 – 1993) respectively. He is currently a consultant of the chamber.

Mr. Julius Matiko Mwita Matiko

Mr. Julius Matiko Mwita Matiko (65) was recently the Vice President (Agriculture) of Tanzania Chamber of Commerce, Industry and Agriculture (TCCIA); Member of the Board of Directors of the Tanzania Private Sector Foundation; Member of Tanzania National Business Council; Member of the Board of Trustee of the Agricultural Inputs Trust Fund and Member of the TCRA Consumer Consultative Council.   He holds a B.A (Economics and Political Science) from the University of East Africa, University College of Dar es Salaam (1968) and a Masters in Political Science from Indiana University, Bloomington – Indiana USA (1970). He has 28 years in civil services. His civil service career started in 1973 as Regional Development Director (RDD) of Rukwa Region (1973 – 1975). Mr. Matiko was elevated to Principal Secretary, Ministry of Information and Broadcasting (1975 – 1977) and thereafter moved to the Ministry of Home Affairs as Principal Secretary (1977 – 1983). He has worked as Regional Development Director, Coast Region (1983 – 1989); Regional Development Director, Iringa Region (1989 – 1992); Regional Director of Administration, Dar es Salaam (1992 – 1995). Mr. Matiko retired from Civil Service in 1995 and he is presently the Director of Kibaha Agro-products Limited.

Eng. Aloyce Joseph Mwamanga

Eng. Aloyce Joseph Mwamanga (56) is the Vice President of TCCIA representing the Industrial Sector. He holds a B. Sc (Hons) in Civil Engineering from University of Nairobi, Kenya (1972). Mr. Mwamanga is registered as Professional Engineer by Engineers Registration Board (ERB). He has over 30 years experience in Civil Engineering and he is a fellow of Institute of Engineers Tanzania and member of Electrical Apparatus Services Association of the USA. He has extensively participated in various seminars, workshops, trade missions and business delegations related to business management skills and engineering field. His past employment include Assistant Civil Engineer, Tanzania Zambia Railways Authority (TAZARA); Deputy Managing Director, Pioneer Electrical Machines and Consulting Company Limited (PEMACCO LTD); Deputy Managing Director, Pemacco Bevi Electric Machines Limited (PEMACCO BEVI LTD); Resident Engineer, Bains Construction Company Limited. He is past Board Member of Mbeya Regional Trading Company (RTC); past member of the Institute of Engineers Tanzania (IET), Mbeya Region;    past Chairman of the board, SIDO Regional Small Enterprises Development Committee; past member of Mtwara Corridor Development – Mbeya Committee; past member of the board, East African Business Council.

Presently, Eng. Mwamanga is the Chairman of the Board, PEMMACO Limited; Chairman of the Board, PEMACO BEVI Ltd;   member of Tanzania Private Sector Foundation (TPSF); member of the Tanzania National Business Council (TNBC); Chairman of the Board, Mbeya Technical College; member of the Board, Tanzania Engineering and Manufacturing Development Organization (TEMDO); member of the Board, VETA (South West Zone); member of the Regional Income Tax Appeal Board, Mbeya Region; Treasurer, Highlands Commercial Bank steering committee; Chairman of Mbeya Disabled Persons Trust Fund; 

Mr. Hamadi Jumbe Menye 

Mr. Hamadi Jumbe Menye (46) is presently the Treasurer General of Tanzania Chamber of Commerce, Industry and Agriculture (TCCIA); Managing Director of 2 PIA Investment Limited and TAN 4 Group limited; Member of the Board of Directors of Tanzania Private Sector Foundation. He holds a Diploma in Education (Accountancy). Mr. Menye is past chairman of TCCIA, Tanga Region. Other interests include Board Member of Tanga Urban Water and Sewage Authority; Board Member of Vocational Education and Training Authority (VETA), Tanga Region; Board Member of Tanga Credit Shop (Poverty Africa); Secretary General, Tanga District Development Association (TADDA).

Eng. Peter Daudi Petro Chisawillo

Eng. Peter Daudi Petro Chisawillo (54) is presently the Managing Director of Intermech Engineering Ltd; TCCIA Vice President – Commerce; Member of the Board of Directors of Vocational Education and Training Authority (VETA), Eastern Zone Board. He holds a BSc in Mechanical Engineering from Nairobi University (1974) and an MSc. Degree in Design Engineering from from Cranfield University, Cranfield - Bedford, UK. Eng. Chisawillo has over 30 years experience in Engineering. He started his career as Maintenance Engineer, Mzinga Corporation, Morogoro (1974 – 1978) rising to the position of Chief Engineer from 1983 to 1996 and later moved to private business in engineering. He is registered with the Engineers Registration Board as a professional engineer and is also a member of the Institution of Engineers Tanzania (IET).

Mr. Daniel Mahenda Enock Masanja

Mr. Daniel Mahenda Enock Masanja (62) is presently the Managing Director of Kajima Construction Company, a National Councillor of TCCIA and Board Member representing employers - VETA Central Zone. He holds a B. Sc (Hons) in Civil Engineering from Tokyo University, Japan and a Diploma in Civil Engineering from Dar es Salaam Technical College. His public service career as Civil Engineer started in the Ministry of Regional Administration in 1961 to 1970 where he worked as Civil Engineer responsible for Rural Construction Units. He has served in several senior positions in the government including Civil Engineer Responsible for Civil Works, Prime Minister’s Office (1971 – 1983); National Project Director FAO/Government Food Storage Program, Ministry of Agriculture (1984 – 1990); National Construction Council Board Member, Ministry of works (1985 – 1990). Mr. Masanja is the past Chairman of TCCIA, Dodoma Regional Chamber.

Mr. Amran Kheri Batenga

Mr. Amran Kheri Batenga (40) is presently the regional chairman of TCCIA, Mwanza Region and member of chamber’s National Executive Council. He is the Managing Director of BN Metro (EA) Limited; Director of Newsmaster Corporation Limited; Proprietor of Bates National. He holds a Post Graduate Diploma in Business Administration from United States International University (USIU), Nairobi Kenya and a National Accountancy Diploma (NAD) from Dar es Salaam School of Accountancy. He is currently pursuing a distant learning in Executive Masters Degree in Business Administration (EMBA) at St Clement University, Australia. Mr. Batenga is a Member of National Board of Accountants and Auditors (NBAA), Board Member of Tanzania Library Services, Mwanza Region; Vice Chairman and Member of Advisory committee of Small Scale Industries Development (SIDO), Mwanza region; Member of the Regional Investment Committee which is under the chairmanship of Mwanza Regional Commissioner. 

Mr. Tamim Amijee

Mr. Tamim Amijee (38) is presently the Chairperson of TCCIA Dar es Salaam Regional Chamber and the Managing Consultant of Matrix Consulting, an information and management consultancy firm. He holds B. Sc (Economics) from the University of London of UK and M. Sc. in (Community Economic Development) from Southern New Hampshire University of USA. He is also the proprietor of Tanga Building Supplies, a trading enterprise in Tanga; Partner in Mwaboza Salt Works in Muheza District; Founder and Chairperson of Urithi - the Tanga Heritage Centre, a local NGO with the mission to protect and promote the heritage of Tanga; and the Deputy President of the Institute of Management Consultants Tanzania. His consultancy clients include the government, international NGOs and large corporations. His recent work has included policy reviews, sectoral surveys, farm-enterprise development, project evaluations, and industrial and agricultural investments feasibility studies. Mr. Amijee has also published numerous articles on business and economics in various national newspapers and presented commissioned papers at different fora. He is present editor of the Urithi Newspaper and Biashara (TCCIA Dar business information newsletter). He was the founding editor of TCCIA Newsletter. Mr. Amijee has been the past TCCIA-GTZ Private Sector Promotion East Africa project. He has travelled extensively inside the country, within East Africa and internationally. His past business and working experience includes timber harvesting, furniture and joinery works, fish processing, commodities trading, transport and distribution, marketing, import and export, and industrial project management. 

Mrs. Esther Kanyamale Mwamaso

Mrs. Ester Kanyamale Mwamaso (42) is presently the Managing Director and Owner of Tongil Investors Company Limited and TCCIA Vice President (Agriculture). She was until recently the National Councillor of TCCIA and a Vice Chairperson (Agriculture) of Dar es Salaam Region. She is also the National Coordinator, Women Federation for World Peace (WFWP), Tanzania Chapter. She holds a BA degree (Hons) in Public Administration from Sun Moon University, South Korea; an Advanced Diploma in Computer Science from Central College of Commerce, Lusaka, Zambia; Certificate in Business Studies from Central College of Commerce, Lusaka, Zambia; Certificate in Human Resource Management (ESAMI), Arusha; Certificate in Agriculture from Twikatane Institute of Agriculture. Mrs. Mwamaso is a member of Tanzania Civil Aviation Consumer Consultative Council (TCAA_CCC); a member of the National Steering Committee of Agricultural Sector Development Program (ASDP) and a member of Agricultural Marketing Systems Development Program Steering Committee (AMSDP-PSC). She is also a member of Smallholder dairy Support Program.

2.2
TCCIA Co. INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

In order to ensure that the TCCIA Co. financial resources are optimally invested, the Board of Directors have established an Investment Committee to oversee all investment activities of TCCIA Co. The Investment Committee therefore works as an Investment Manager. The committee is an independent body mandated by TCCIA members to decide on investment priorities and create an efficient portfolio for TCCIA Co. The Committee will determine placement of assets and see to it that the same is managed profitably. In order to reinforce its capacity to manage TCCIA Company's investments, the committee will outsource advisory services and management of TCCIA Co. will perform secretarial role to this committee.

The members of Investment Committee are as follows:

Prof. Lucian Ambrose Msambichaka (Chairman)

Prof. Lucian Ambrose Msambichaka (61) is a highly respected Research Professor, currently with the Economic Research Bureau, University of Dar es Salaam. He is a Councillor of TCCIA. He holds a B. Sc. (Agriculture), an M. Sc. (Agricultural Economics) and a Ph.D. (Agricultural Economics) from Leipzig University. He served as Director of Economic Research Bureau (1982 – 1988), and is the Founder Director of the University’s Consultancy Bureau (1993 – 1996). While at the University of Dar es Salaam, he has served as member of various Boards, Committees and Task Forces. He has over 30 years experience in consultancy services to the Government of United Republic of Tanzania and International Organizations including the World Bank, UNDP, UNCDF, UN-Capacity 21, IIED/OECD, IFAD and UNHCR. 

Prof. Msambichaka has served as: Chairman of the Board of the National Health Insurance Fund; Chairman of Dunduliza Company Limited; Chairman of Academic Board of Tumaini University- Dar es Salaam Collage Board of Governors; Chairman of Morogoro Leather Goods Board of Directors; Chairman of Special Research Committee on Agriculture and Livestock of the Tanzania National Scientific Research Council;  Vice Chairman of Dar es Salaam Community Bank (DCB) and Vice-Chairman of Financial Services and Enterprises Development Association. 

He has served as a member in national and international committees and task forces, including: Member of the international Panel of Scientists for the World Bank funded Lake Victoria Environment Management Project; Member of Tanzania Association of Micro-Finance Institutions Board; Member of the Presidential Task Force which formulated the Tanzania National Agricultural Policy; Member of the Presidential Committee which reviewed the Tanzania Rural Credit System; Member of the Advisory Group on Structural Adjustment Program of the Tanzanian Economy – Agricultural Sector Team; Member of National Productivity Council; Member of Cooperative and Rural Development Bank Loan Committee of Five for Agricultural Rehabilitation. He has extensively published books, papers and writings, consultancy and government reports.

Dr. Gideon H. Kaunda (Member of the Committee)

Dr. Gideon H. Kaunda is a Corporate Lawyer and Communications and Transport Specialist with vast experience in project development and legal advisory services. He holds an LLB from the University of East Africa (Dar es Salaam College), LLM and Ph.D degrees from McGill University, Montreal, Canada. He is currently the Chairman of Pangea Securities (EA) Ltd and serves as ad hoc Arbitrator, International court on Aviation and Space Arbitration (IASA). Recently, the Tanzania National Business Council appointed him as a Member of the Human Capital Development Working Group under the aegis of the Investors Round Table (IRT). Whilst attached to DCDM Consulting Ltd, (2000 -2004), Dr. Kaunda was involved in various business integration and consultancy assignments, including corporate recovery and receivership, as well as a resource person in the Tanzania Government Civil Service Installation of Performance Management System in independent Departments. Previously, Dr. Kaunda worked as Principal Assistant, Counsel and Legal Advisor to the East African Community for eight years (1969 – 1977), after which he was appointed as the Tanzania Government Representative on the Council of the international Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO), for a term of six years. Having re-joined the Government in 1984, Dr. Kaunda took up various consultancy assignments, PTA (COMESA), The World Bank, The European Union, amongst others, prior to being seconded as Special Assistant to Alliance Air Chief Executive in 1994.

Mr. Arphaxad Gomborojo Agomas Masambu (Member of the Committee)

Mr. Arphaxad G. A. Masambu (44) holds a BA degree in Economics (Hons) from the University of Dar s Salaam (1982 – 1985), Graduate Diploma in Economics of Development (1992 – 1993) and an MA Economics of Development from the Australian National University, Canberra, Australia (1993 – 1994). He is currently the Operations Manager cum Authorised Dealer Representative (ADR) with Rasilimali Limited and Board Member of TOL Ltd. His past employment includes Planning and Controlling Officer – Shinyanga RIDEP-PMO World Bank Project. Manpower Planning Officer – Ministry of Labour and Manpower Development (currently The President’s Office – Civil Service Department); Senior Project Appraisal Officer – Tanzania Investment Bank (TIB); Principal Planning and Business Development Officer, TIB; Coordinator of the establishment of Rasilimali Limited which one of the first Licensed Dealing Members of the DSE. Mr. Masambu is one of the pioneers of the Dar es Salaam Stock Exchange and a Member of the DSE Stock Brokers Association. He has extensively attended local and international seminars and courses related to capital markets, securities business, banking and investment advisory services.

Elsie S. Kanza (Member of the Committee)

Elsie S. Kanza (29) holds a B. Sc. (Cum Laude) in International Business Administration from the United States International University – Africa Branch (USIU-A) Nairobi Kenya (1993 – 1995), MSc. Finance from University of Strathclyde, Scotland UK (1996 – 1997) and an MA Development Economics from Centre for Development Economics, Williams College, Massachusetts USA (1999 - 2000). She works with the Ministry of Finance as Principal Policy Analyst Financial and Capital Markets after being seconded from Bank of Tanzania. She has worked as Financial Analyst, Bank of Tanzania (Directorate of Financial Markets) since 1997 to 2002.

2.3
SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE

TCCIA Co. organization structure is as shown in the chart below. In order to facilitate the initial operations of the company, the Board has appointed Mr. Donald J. Kamori as the Chief Executive Officer, who will oversee the day-to-day operations and affairs of the company and is responsible to the shareholders through the Board of Directors. TCCIA Co. will employ before it starts operations the Investment Manager, Qualified Accountant and Administration Manager. 

TCCIA Co. MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE









Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Donald Jimogi Kamori

Mr. Donald J. Kamori (60) holds a B. Com (Hons) from the Nairobi University College, University of East Africa (1970) and an MA (Development Economics) from Centre for Development Economics, William’s College, Massachusetts, USA (1973). He has over 30 years of working experience in the economics and banking fields. His past employments include Economist, Bank of Tanzania rising to the position of Director of Economic Research and Policy (1981 – 1984), Director of Exchange Control (1984 – 1990), Director of Import Licensing (1990 – 1993). Mr. Kamori was appointed to be the General Manager of CRDB Bank in 1993 and in the same year shifted to former National Bank of Commerce (NBC) as its Managing Director (1993 – 1997). Mr. Kamori has in the past served as a Director of several important boards including the Tanzania Petroleum Development Corporation, Tanzania Electric Supply Company, Tanzania Tobacco Authority, Morogoro Polyster Textile Company, chairman of Agip Tanzania Limited, Huduma ya Maendeleo (an NGO dealing with micro-credits) and the National Bank of Commerce. Mr. Kamori is also Honorary Treasurer of Economic Society of Tanzania. Until recently he was the Managing Director of Impala Consultants Company Limited.

A3:
INVESTMENT ADVISER

The expectations of the members of TCCIA are that their investments in TCCIA Co. are highly protected and will yield attractive returns. Although long-term considerations do not rule out TCCIA Co. developing in-house capacity to manage its investment resources and guide investment decisions, it has been considered prudent to seek from outside TCCIA Co. the services of a professional investment adviser to enhance prospective investors’ confidence in TCCIA Co. African Banking Corporation Tanzania Limited (ABCT) has been appointed to act as the initial investment adviser. This is crucial especially during this initial growth stage of TCCIA Co. Parallel to this process and especially in the future, a decision will be made in respect of longer-term needs for the development of in-house TCCIA Co. investment management capacity. 

3.1
Summary Profile of African Banking Corporation (ABC)

African Banking Corporation (ABC) is a pan-African bank with operations in the SADC region including Botswana, Mozambique, Tanzania, Zambia, Zimbabwe, and with a representative office in South Africa. It is wholly owned by ABC Holdings Limited, which has a primary and secondary public listing on the Botswana and Zimbabwe Stock Exchanges, respectively. In addition to the public investors, through the respective stock exchanges, the group is supported by reputable regional, America and European financial investors including, Old Mutual Life Ass. Co. of Zimbabwe Ltd; HIB Holdings (Private) Limited; Stanbic Nominees Botswana (Pty) Ltd; Kingdom Nominees Pty Ltd Zephyr/01; Barclays Botswana Nominees Pty Ltd Zephyr/01; Heritage Investment Bank Ltd; Broadway Investments (PVT) Ltd; E.F.E. Securities Nominees (PVT) Ltd; Swiss Confederation; DRESDNER Bank Luxembourg S.A; First Mutual Liff Ass. Soc. of Zimbabwe; Heritage Insurance Company of Zimbabwe; Commonwealth Development Corporation; International Finance Corporation; DEG; DEBSWANA Pension Fund; SWEDFUND; DATVEST Nominees (private) Limited. The institutions have facilitated the strengthening of ABC operations and market position. 

3.2
African Banking Corporation Tanzania (ABCT)

ABCT is licensed as an Investment Advisor by the Capital Markets & Securities Authority. TCCIA Co. retained them as financial advisers when the earlier prospectus was prepared. Its Investment Banking practice has won a number of major advisory mandates in the country’s petroleum, energy and telecommunications sectors. A key component of the advisory work was the evaluation of the economic and financial viability of new and expansion projects individually valued at over USD 10 million. The ABCT investment banking team also supports ABC Group’s appraisal and valuation work, and has completed assignments in the information technology (internet) and transport sectors in South Africa.

3.3
ABC Experience and Capability in Asset Management

Asset Management & Unit Trusts which incorporates ABC’s active regional capability for trading and investing in equity and debt instruments for pension funds, corporate and individuals. ABC has demonstrated experience in fund management, with over 17 years of consistent service and superior performance record. ABC Zimbabwe currently manages 49 pension portfolios valued at over US$ 10 million. ABC Zambia pioneered and established the first Unit Trusts in Zambia, and is the country’s leading fund manager.

ABCT Tanzania benefits from the ABC Group’s regional investment advisory expertise to identify and evaluate and structure domestic investment opportunities and instruments. ABCT has been retained to provide technical assistance on the establishment of Unit Trusts in Tanzania among other advisory activities.

3.4
African Banking Corporation Team Members

ABC’s team has strong experience working in partnership with governments and quasi-government institutions to achieve public policy objectives in capital markets transactions. Team members have previously worked, directly or indirectly, for various public policy institutions, including the World Bank (WB) and IFC. As part of their responsibilities within these organizations, team members engaged in policy dialogues with senior government officials in numerous countries. 

3.5
ABC Experience in Investment Management

a)
Capital Market and IPO’s

ABC team members have advised in a number of capital raising exercises including bond issues to quasi-government and private institutions in Mozambique, Tanzania, Zambia and Zimbabwe. Transactions include the first direct listing of privatized assets (RTG) as well as restructurings and refinancing (ZESA). 

b)
Private Equity

ABC has advised and is currently advising on management-buy-out (MBO) transactions that have seen the transfer of ownership to a wider share base of stakeholders. 

c)
Privatisation

In addition to working with utilities in Tanzania, Zambia, Zimbabwe and Mozambique, ABC has been a major player in domestic privatisations in Zimbabwe over the past seven years. Privatisations in which ABC team members have played key roles as lead or joint financial advisors include Dairibord Zimbabwe Limited, Cottco and Rainbow Tourism Group.  In each of these transactions, the ABC team either sourced a strategic partner or raised capital through public or private placements of shares, and advised on the structuring of an Employee Shares Ownership Plan (ESOP). 

A4:
DIRECTORS DECLARATION

Borrowing powers, appointment and remuneration of Directors

The relevant provisions of the Articles of Association relating to borrowing powers, election and removal of directors and the rights to vote on proposals in which they have an interest are included in page 43 to 48 of this prospectus.

The directors of TCCIA Co. have not received, and are not receiving any remuneration from the company because the company has not started operations. The remuneration of the company’s directors will be determined and approved at the first Annual General Meeting after the IPO as required by Companies Act.

Interests of Directors

Under the Articles of Association, no share qualification is required for one to serve as director. At the date of this prospectus, the interests of directors in the issued and paid up share capital of the company were as follows:

	NAME OF DIRECTOR
	NUMBER OF SHARES HELD

	ARSTABLUS ELVIS MUSIBA

MARIOT MARGESON KALANJE

JULIUS MATIKO MWITA MATIKO

ALOYCE MWAMANGA

JUMBE HAMAD MENYE

PETER CHISAWILLO

DANIEL E. M. MASANJA

AMRAN KHERI BATENGA

TAMIM AMIJEE

ESTHER KANYAMALE MWAMASO
	8,000

None

4,000

12,000

800

4,000

None

4,000

4,000

None


Loan to Directors

The Articles of Association prohibit loans to Directors.

Working Capital Adequacy

Upon successful IPO, and given the company’s investment objective indicated on page 8, the directors believe that the working capital of TCCIA Co. is adequate for the Company’s current and future foreseeable requirements.

Litigation

The Directors confirm that they are not aware of any material litigation or arbitration proceedings that may have, or has had in the past 12 months, a significant effect on the Company’s financial position.

Material Contracts and unusual transactions

TCCIA Co. has no material contracts entered into outside the ordinary course of business. There have been no unusual events or transactions that significantly affect the operations and financial results of TCCIA Co. in the five years prior to the offer. Accordingly, no Director has an interest in any contract, arrangements or transaction entered into by the Company which is or was unusual in its nature or conditions or significant in relation to the company’s business, effected during the current year or immediately preceding the financial year, or was effected during an earlier financial year and remains in any respect outstanding or unperformed.

Material commitment for capital expenditures

TCCIA Co. has not had material commitment for capital expenditure in the past five years.

Material Changes

No material changes have occurred in the financial or trading position of TCCIA Co. between 31st December 2004 and the date of this Prospectus.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors of TCCIA Co., whose names appear on page 12 through page 15 of this Prospectus, have considered all statements of fact and opinion, and individually and collectively accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information given in the Prospectus. The Directors declare that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, there are no other facts, the omission of which would make any statements in this Prospectus misleading.

SECTION B - THE COMPANY OUTLOOK

B1:
PROFILE OF TCCIA Co. 

 Nature of Business

TCCIA Co. shall initially acquire shares of strategic importance and profitable commercial enterprises in which Government has shares and is divesting in the aforementioned sectors. In the future, TCCIA Co. intends to manage investment funds and acquire shares in privately owned enterprises, especially those of strategic importance to the national economy. It will also negotiate joint ventures with foreign investors to exploit profitable investment opportunities. 

Incorporation and Background

TCCIA Co. was incorporated on 9th November 1999.  As such, it is a recently established company which does not have a long track record. Its offices are located on 2nd Floor, Twiga House, Samora Avenue, Dar es Salaam.

The Directors of TCCIA Co. have endeavoured to sensitize TCCIA members to establish and support the TCCIA Co. initiative. This has included all regional and district chambers. Their responses have been positive and encouraging. 

Initial Capital

The authorized share capital of the company is TZS 10, 000,000,000/= divided into 40,000,000 shares of TZS 250/= each.  Currently, the members of TCCIA have subscribed the initial capital of the company amounting to TZS 213,990,000/= by way of public offering and private placement.
Borrowing

TCCIA Co. has not borrowed any funds.

Capital commitment

TCCIA Co. has not committed capital anywhere.

Acquisition of assets

TCCIA Co. has acquired only a few necessary office furniture to enable it run office operations.

Employee information

As of the date of this prospectus, TCCIA Co. Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Donald J. Kamori as its first Chief Executive Officer, whose responsibility will be to oversee the day-to-day operations and affairs of the company and is responsible to the shareholders through the Board of Directors. TCCIA Co. will employ immediately after the IPO the Investment Manager, Qualified Accountant and Administration Manager. 

Dividend Policy

TCCIA Co. is a new corporate vehicle, which has very far reaching ambitions. In order to participate effectively in its envisaged program, TCCIA Co. requires substantial resources from its shareholders as well as from potential lending sources. In addition, the company has no track record. In becoming members of TCCIA Co. the shareholders buy into a vision of participating in enormous NMB growth potential as well as long-term prospects of the company. The directors’ policy on dividends is therefore to retain a sizeable proportion of earnings and grow the company for a foreseeable future in other areas including units, Twiga Cement and 
any other privatizations in order to avail opportunities to TCCIA members to have a stake in Tanzanian economy. The company expects to start paying 50% dividend payout ratio for the first three years and the rate will be reviewed from time to time depending on the performance of the investments. 
B2:
RISK FACTORS

The funds to be raised from this issue will be invested in NMB. Accordingly, the 
risk factors associated with the investment will be the risks that NMB face in the banking industry. These risks are enumerated below;
a)
Market Competition

The banking sector has been largely liberalized. Currently, there are 23 commercial banks that are offering banking services in Tanzania. This number indicates that the country is over banked. This fact will create competition in the banking sector, including the NMB. TCCIA Co. Board is confident NMB will withstand the anticipated competition through its efficient and effective management, branch network and strong management and emphasis in its core segment of microfinance and rural banking.

b)
Government interference in NMB business

In the mean time when the government is majority shareholder and its dependence in NMB for transmitting funds to the regional and district headquarters, a certain level of Government intervention in the operations of NMB may be expected. This may have some effects on the anticipated performance of the bank and consequently the return to shareholders. However, such interferences are expected to diminish as the Government divest from NMB in the next phases.

c)
TCCIA Co.’s Initial dependence on Share Subscriptions

Before TCCIA Co. starts obtaining a return from its investments, it will rely heavily on shareholder’s funds and potential lenders. Participation of shareholders and lenders in TCCIA Co.’s program is predicated upon the confidence that both will have on the company’s vision and mission as well as its performance. The initial part of TCCIA Co.’s operations is likely to be challenging. 

d)
Newness of TCCIA Co.

As earlier explained, TCCIA Co. is a new company. It therefore has not operated to facilitate historical evaluation of performance of the company. 

e)
Dependence of Tanzania’s Economy on the Agricultural Sector

The agricultural sector provides the basis for the subsistence of a large part of Tanzania’s population. Agriculture is highly sensitive to adverse weather conditions such that the occurrence of drought or floods has a major impact on the annual crop and therefore the income to the population. A deleterious effect on the purchasing power to Tanzanians affected by adverse weather conditions is therefore likely to affect the performance of companies like banks operating in the country.

f)
Exchange Rate Movements

NMB as a financial institution will be dealing with foreign currency transactions once a banking licence is obtained. Foreign currency transactions expose banks in different ways, and may have far reaching effects, positive and negative to the performance on NMB. We believe NMB will adopt prudent risk management techniques to manage foreign currency risks. 

The above risk factors are presented as probable events that may or may not arise to affect the performance of TCCIA Co. They are challenges that TCCIA Co. management and the Board of Directors should be geared to face and to take appropriate mitigating measures. Yet they are being stated here for the sake of transparency to be taken into account by prospective investors.

SECTION C - TCCIA INVESTMENT COMPANY POLICY AND OBJECTIVES
C1:
INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES

1) The mission of TCCIA Co. is to enable the members of TCCIA to increase their ownership in commercial enterprises in Tanzania particularly those which are being privatized by the government, starting with NMB. 

2) TCCIA Co. aims to enable its members to pool together their financial resources and initiate and/or acquire significantly commercial enterprises in Tanzania which are capable to generate high returns to its members. 

3) Such funds will come from direct investment in TCCIA Co. through sale of TCCIA Co. shares to its members. 

4) All TCCIA Co. funds will be managed by professional managers to fulfil TCCIA Co. investment objectives and maximize shareholders’ returns. An Investment Adviser, ABC, will advise TCCIA Co. Investment Committee which will be charged with overseeing the respective investment decisions of TCCIA Co.

5) TCCIA Co. will operate as TCCIA members’ vehicle to facilitate partnerships with foreign investors in joint ventures.

6) TCCIA Co. will also make specific investments to establish or acquire and manage individual business entities.

7) It will further invest in other financial products that deliver members’ value.

8) TCCIA Company’s overriding factor in investment decisions will be guided by high profitability notwithstanding 1 to 7 above.

C2:
INVESTMENT PLANS AND OPPORTUNITIES

There are a number of areas with strong potential for investment in order to achieve TCCIA Co. investment objectives and produce returns for shareholders. These would include: Investment in companies being privatised and those already privatized by the government. To begin with, TCCIA Co. intends to acquire shares in the National Microfinance Bank (NMB).

C3:
OPPORTUNITIES OFFERED TO TCCIA MEMBERS

TCCIA Co. presents new opportunities for all TCCIA members to invest meaningfully in the Tanzania economy. In particular it is uniquely designed to deliver benefits in the following ways.

a. TCCIA members will be able to collectively invest (through TCCIA Co.) in investments in DSE listed shares, Treasury Bills, Treasury Bonds, shares of companies that TCCIA Co. plans to acquire and in new companies to be established by TCCIA Co., all of which are beyond individual financial capacity of most Tanzanians. 

b. TCCIA Co. shareholders may have lower risks in the investments because of TCCIA Company’s diversified portfolio

c. TCCIA Co. shareholders will gain more benefits during IPOs of entities in which TCCIA Co. will acquire shares particularly at the time of the entities’ privatisation stage. Experience has shown that IPO prices are set attractively to encourage initial purchase and have the potential of even doubling in the secondary market.

d. Investing in TCCIA Co. will enable TCCIA members to have a representation on the Boards of the companies in which TCCIA Co. will acquire shares, and thus exercise a greater means of participation and control in the direction of respective companies.
e. Investing in TCCIA Co. will empower TCCIA members in the development of the economy by investing in companies with strategic economic importance. Investing in TCCIA Co. will provide opportunities for TCCIA members to profitably participate in most sectors of the national economy.  

C4:
PRIVATIZATION PROCESS IN TANZANIA

The privatization program has been implemented for about a decade now.  Total completed divestitures at 30th June 2004 were 258 companies. Total number of parastatals available for divestiture as at 30 June 2004 was 294 companies
. Divestiture was through sale of shares, joint ventures between local and foreign investors or outright sales of units and assets as well as leases.

The units divested have been in a variety of sectors including banking, agriculture, industries and trade, transport and communications, energy and mining, tourism and natural resources sectors

The present phase of privatization that TCCIA Company has acquired a stake is the National Microfinance Bank (NMB).

C5:
TCCIA Co.’s INVESTMENT PLAN

It is recognized that investment opportunities available for investment companies in Tanzania are not yet fully exploited. Those that are well known consist of few listed companies, investment in Government instruments as well as low yielding bank deposits.  But two additional areas are shares arising from divestiture of state enterprises that also provide opportunities, which may be exploited by investment companies, and the establishment of new enterprises that presents new avenues for Tanzanian shareholders. 

TCCIA Co.’s programme is to offer Tanzanians an opportunity to participate in a diversified portfolio that will include investments in newly listed companies (companies in Initial Public Offers); in Government securities and acquisition of certain selected enterprises which though not listed are financially sound and are likely to qualify for listing in the event their shareholders pursue a listing programme. 

In the long term, and when fully established, TCCIA Co. may establish subsidiaries in profitable sectors as well as Joint Ventures with foreign investors. In the short run, TCCIA Co. shareholders should expect growth of their fund investments arising out of expansion of TCCIA Co.’s portfolio based on increased shareholder’s investments and retained earnings.

Upon becoming fully operational and meeting the requirements for listing, TCCIA Co. will be listed at the Dar es Salaam Stock Exchange.  This will in the future avail shareholders the opportunity of liquidating their shares rather easily i.e. they will be able to sell or buy shares via the bourse.  

C6:
TCCIA Co. INVESTMENT TARGET

TCCIA Co. IPO is targeted to acquire 5% stake in National Microfinance Bank Limited (NMB) which is at the process of being privatized by the government.  

The profile of NMB is briefly indicated below: 
The National Micro Finance Bank was established on 1st October 1997 after the restructuring of the former National Bank of Commerce Ltd. out of which three entities were established - the NBC 1997 Ltd., NBC Holding Corporation Ltd. and the NMB. The NMB was established under the National Micro Finance Bank Incorporation Act, 1997. The authorized share capital of NMB as at the time of the issue of this prospectus is TZS 25 billion (Twenty five billion Tanzania shillings) divided into 2,500,000 (two million five hundred thousand) ordinary shares each having a par value of TZS 10,000 (ten thousand Tanzania shillings) of which 2,000,000 (two million) shares have been issued and are fully paid or credited as fully paid by the Government.

The Government now plans to sell up to 49% (representing 980,000 ordinary shares) of the shareholding in NMB to a consortium of investors to be led by a strategic investor. In addition, following completion of the sale of 49% of the shareholding to the aforementioned strategic investors, the government plans to sell 21% of the shareholding to citizens of Tanzania or companies whose shares are wholly owned by citizens of Tanzania or held by companies whose share capital is wholly owned by citizens of Tanzania. The government will retain 30% of the shareholding in NMB for sale to the public at a later stage.

NMB has one hundred and four (104) branches and four (4) Agencies and deposits of approximately TZS 395 billion (US $ 378 million) as at 30th September 2003. It is the country’s largest bank in terms of customer deposits and has substantial customer base throughout the country, including rural and urban centres. NMB has the largest branch network of any bank in Tanzania. 

SECTION D - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

D.1
INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT


ACCOUNTANTS, AUDITORS AND TAX CONSULTANTS
P.O. Box 21870/76894
Tel: 255-022-2130120/2137559

Fax.255-022-2132583

E-mail: matena@africaonline.co.tz
The Board of Directors

TCCIA Investment Company Limited

P. O. Box 9713

Dar es Salaam

Dear Sirs,

We have compiled the enclosed Balance Sheet, Income Statement and Cash flow Statement of TCCIA Investment Company Limited for the year ended 30th June, 2005 and corresponding forecast financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2006 respectively.

The compilation engagement was performed in accordance with the generally accepted International Accounting Standards on related services applicable to compilation engagements, and in conformity with the terms of engagement. 

The compiled statements referred to above are based on documents and information provided by the management of the company. The management is therefore responsible for both the accuracy and completeness of the financial statements compiled. 
We have not carried out an audit or review of the financial statements, and accordingly express no assurance thereon. 
   BALANCE SHEET

  As at 30th June 2005

	PARTICULARS
	Note
	30.06.2005

TZS.

	ASSETS:

Fixed Assets

Investments

Preliminary Expenses

Current Assets:

Treasury Bills

Cash and Bank Balances

Current Liabilities:

Creditors and Accruals

Net Current Asset

TOTAL ASSETS

FINANCED BY:

Members’ advance contribution

Issued and fully paid-up Share Capital:

TCCIA Founder Members

Initial Public Offer – CRDB

TOTAL EQUITY
	1

2

3
	742,000

0

158,695,044

159,437,044

0

196,912,522

196,912,522

117,547,566

79,364,956

238,802,000

24,812,000

25,650,000

188,340,000

213,990,000

238,802,000




Notes 1 to 3 form part of these Accounts

There are no other liabilities not included in the balance sheet.

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS:

Note 1: Preliminary Expenses
- 
TZS. 158,695,044
TCCIA Investment Company did not undertake trading activities since its formation in 1999 to 30 June 2005. Consequently all expenditures incurred up to 30 June 2005 have been treated as Preliminary Expenses and will be amortized in following year. The detailed expenditures are as follows:

	
	Advertising Expenses
	
	              4,028,022 

	
	Board Meeting Expenses
	
	              1,146,000 

	
	Directors Expenses
	
	             1,778,000 

	
	Stationery
	
	               596,100 

	
	Transport and Travelling
	
	             3,872,500 

	
	Sensitization Expenses
	
	                         360,000

	
	CRDB Coordination Fees
	
	                                70,000,000   

	
	IPO Launching expenses
	
	             1,450,000 

	
	Printing Brochures and Prospectus
	
	           13,602,000 

	
	CMSA's Prospectus Evaluation Fees
	
	            6,000,000 

	
	ABC'S Retainer Fee
	
	            4,000,000 

	
	Staff Salaries
	
	             8,250,000 

	
	Consultancy and Legal Fees
	
	             41,850,000 

	
	Telephone Expenses
	
	                  751,650 

	
	Bank Charges
	
	             1,006,772 

	
	Postage
	
	
	                                          4,000 

	
	
	       158,695,044 


Note 2: Cash and Bank Balances
- 
                         TZS. 196,912,522


CRDB Bank -Collection Account



          7,251,000


CRDB Bank – Clearing Account



             170,294


CRDB Bank – IPO Funds



       188,340,000


Azania Bancorp – Current Account


           1,151,228


Total






       196,912,522

Note 3: Creditors and Accruals
- 
                                          TZS. 117,547,566


Tanzania Securities Ltd.




           35,000,000

National Printing Co. Ltd




             2,602,000


ITV







   620,566


Maira & Company Advocates



             1,000,000


A. Mwamanga





                975,000

Chipeta & Associates





3,000,000


CRDB Bank




                        70,000,000

Audit Fees






2,850,000


Accrued Salaries





1,500,000

TOTAL






         117,547,566
CASHFLOWS STATEMENT

For the period ended 30th June 2005










Period up to










30.06.2005










TZS

Cash flows from / (Used) – Operating activities:

· Increase in Creditors and Accruals



117,547,566

Net Cash Outflow to operating activities



117,547,566

Cash flows from Investing Activities:

· Acquisition of Fixed Assets




      (742,000)

Net Cash Outflow to Investing activities



      (742,000)

Cash flows from financing Activities:

· Members’ advance contribution 



  24,812,000
· Proceeds on issue of share capital  



213,990,000

· Preliminary Operating Expenditures

                         (158,695,044)
       
 

Net cash inflow from Financing Activities


                80,106,956
Net Cash Inflow






 196,912,522

Net increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents


              196,912,522

D. 2
FORECAST FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FORECAST BALANCE SHEET

As at 30th June 2006

	PARTICULARS
	Note
	30.06.2006

TZS.

	ASSETS:

Fixed Assets

Investments

Preliminary Expenses

Current Assets:

Treasury Bills

Cash and Bank Balances

Current Liabilities:

Creditors and Accruals
Taxation
Net Current Asset

TOTAL ASSETS

FINANCED BY:

Issued and fully paid-up Share Capital

Initial Public Offer – Proposed

Retained Earnings

TOTAL EQUITY
	1

2


	2,480,500

3,345,550,000

141,116,667
3,489,147,167

0

266,025,406
266,025,406
4,000,000

11,154,772
15,154,772
250,870,634
3,740,017,801
213,990,0000
3,500,000,000

26,027,801

3,740,017,801



FORECAST INCOME STATEMENT

For the period ending 30 June 2006

	PARTICULARS
	Note
	Period ending
30.06.2006

TZS.

	Investment Income Received

Operating Expenses (Current period)

Profit from Operations

Amortization of previous year preliminary Expenses

Depreciation Expenses

Profit before Interest and Tax

Interest

Taxation

Net Profit after Interest and Taxation

Proposed Dividends

Retained Profits

Earning per Share

Number of Shares


	1

2
	170,940,350

     (12,442,608)

158,497,742
(120,695,044)

           (620,125)

37,182,573

0

      (11,154,772)

26,027,801

                           0

       26,027,801

7.00
14,855,960


Notes 1 and 2 form part of these Accounts

FORECAST CASH FLOWS STATEMENT

For the Period Ending 30 June 2006

	PARTICULARS
	Note
	Period Ending
30.06.2006

TZS

	Cash flow from operating activities:

Surplus for the year before tax

Amortization of Preliminary expense

Adjustment of Depreciation

Operating Surplus before Working Capital

Changes in Working Capital

Net Cash flow from operating activities

Cash flows from Investing Activities:

Acquisition of Fixed Assets

Investments

Net Cash Outflow to Investing activities
Cash flow from financing activities:

Proceed on issue of share capital

Preliminary Expenses

Net cash from Financing activities
Net increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalent as at 30.06.2005

Cash and Cash equivalents as at 30.06.2006
	
	37,182,573

120,695,044

               620,125
158,497,742          (113,547,565)
44,950,177

(2,358,626)

(3,345,550,000)
(3,347,908,626)

3,475,188,000

 (103,116,667)

3,372,071,333
69,112,884

       196,912,522

  266,025,406


NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS:

Note 1: 
Assumptions Underlying the Forecasts:

The forecasts are based on the best estimate assumptions of the TCCIA 
Investment Company Limited (TCCIA Co.) management for and on behalf of the Board and adopted by the Board. The outcomes of the forecast are subject to overall level of interest rate in government securities and the intensity of competition in the banking industry. As a result, actual results may differ from the forecast. TCCIA Co. directors are confident that the actual outcome will not depart materially from forecasts during the year. Significant assumptions used in the preparations of the forecasts include:

A. TCCIA Co. will invest 100% of the net proceeds in acquiring NMB and will result in 5% of NMB equity.

B. NMB will be provided with the full banking licence in 2005 after the entry of the strategic investor. For the first year, the main focus will be fee-based activities. Lending will grow by 20% in 2005, 23% in 2006, 44% in 2007, and 60% in 2008 before reaching 70% in 2009. The loan portfolio will reach TZS 330 billion in 2009.

C. NMB will retain its strategic focus in microfinance and rural banking.

D. TCCIA Co. will not pay the quarterly provisional tax instalments within the forecast period as it has not commenced trading activities. . However, tax liability has been provided on the forecasted profit at the end of the year.

Note 2:
 Preliminary expenses – TZS 114,116,667:

The balance represents the un-amortized balance of the additional preliminary expenses forecast to be incurred in year ending 30.06.2006

	Advertising Expenses
	
	
	             5,500,000 

	Board Meeting Expenses
	
	
	             1,500,000 

	Directors Expenses
	
	
	              2,222,500 

	Stationery
	
	
	                   894,150 

	Transport and Travelling
	
	
	              4,840,625 

	Sensitization Expenses
	
	
	                 540,000 

	IPO Launching expenses
	
	
	              2,175,000 

	Printing Brochures and Prospectus
	
	
	             6,000,000 

	CMSA's Prospectus Evaluation Fees
	
	
	            7,000,000 

	ABC'S Retainer Fee
	
	
	             4,000,000 

	Staff Salaries
	
	
	          18,000,000 

	Advisory Fees
	
	
	          60,000,000 

	Telephone Expenses
	
	
	             2,500,000 

	Bank Charges
	
	
	                 237,000 

	Postage
	
	
	
	                  150,000 

	Total Expenditure (Current year)
	
	
	
	       115,559,275 


Less: Expenses charges to Income Statement


                   


            (12,442,608)
Balance current year







                                      103,116,667

Add: Previous year balance of Preliminary expenses



                                        38,000,000

Balance to Balance Sheet




                                                                141,116,667
Note 3:
 Accounting Policies:

The following are some of the Accounting policies which the Company has adopted. More policies will be formulated as the company consolidates its activities. 

3.1. Basis of Accounting:

The Accounts of the Company are prepared under the historical cost convention and accrual basis.

3.2. Revenue recognition:


Revenue / Income is recognized during the period in which it is earned.
3.3. Investments:

Investment will be stated at cost. Income will be recognized only to the extent of the distribution received from the accumulated net profits of the associate company, arising subsequent to the date of acquisition by the company. Capital gain or loss on investment will be treated as part of income.

3.4. Depreciation:

Depreciation is provided to write off fixed assets concerned over the expected useful economic lives using the reducing balance method.


The annual rates of depreciation to be used are:

· Furniture and fittings


12.5%

· Office Equipments


12.5%

· Motor Vehicles



25.0%

· Computers



37.5%

3.5. Cash and Cash equivalents:

For the purposes of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash in hand and deposits held at call with banks net of bank overdrafts.

3.6. Translation of foreign currencies:

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are converted into Tanzania Shillings at the rates of exchange on the dates of transaction. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Resulting exchange 
differences are recognized in the Income Statement for the year. Non monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
Yours faithfully

MATENA ASSOCIATES
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Baraka O. Maerere, 

(Partner)
Accountants, Auditors and Tax Consultants

Dar es Salaam
D3:
AUDITOR’S REPORT



01 August 2005
The Board of Directors

TCCIA Investment Company Limited

P. O. Box 9713

Dar es Salaam, TANZANIA

Dear Sirs,

RE:
AUDIT REPORT ON THE TRADING STATUS OF THE COMPANY SINCE ITS INCORPORATION ON 9 NOVEMBER 1999 TO 30 JUNE 2005

In accordance with instructions from the company, and the audit engagement letter dated 18 February 2005, we have performed the agreed procedures as described below to confirm the trading status of the company since its formation in 1999 to 30 June 2005.

· Reviewed the company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association;

· Assessed the company’s source of revenue and utilization of funds for the period

· Reviewed the company’s bank statements;

· Reviewed the company’s organization structure and board minutes;

· Assessed the adequacy of accounting systems and documentation;

· Carried out a brief tax compliance review;

· Carried out the company statutory returns compliance review;

· Obtained written management representation.

Based on the procedures above and the evidence gathered from the information provided to us, in our opinion, the company did not undertake trading activities since its formation in 1999 to 30 June 2005.

We understand that you will utilize our opinion for purposes of the Initial Public Offering (IPO).

The above opinion is solely for the purpose of the IPO and for your information and is not to be used for any other purpose and Deloitte & Touche does not accept responsibility for any loss arising from whomever may chose to rely on this information.
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DELOITTE 

Certified Public Accountants (T)

DAR ES SALAAM
Audit   Tax ● Consulting ● Financial Advisory ●


Partners: S. C. Mponji  E. A. Harunani  D. M. Ndonye  J. W. Wangai

SECTION E -STATUTORY INFORMATION

E1:
OFFER STATUTORY INFORMATION

1.1
USE OF PROCEEDS OF THE ISSUE

The proceeds of the issue shall be used to increase share capital of TCCIA Co. thereby enabling the company to acquire its 5% stake in NMB under the consortium agreement. Any excess funds will be immediately invested in the government securities of different maturing dates to match with the anticipated investment in the targeted government owned enterprises being or already privatized.
1.2
PARTICULARS OF THE SHARE OFFER

The Offer for Issue of Shares

A public issue of 14,000,000 ordinary shares is being offered at a price of TZS 250/= per share, payable in full on application in the currency of Tanzania, to investors, upon the terms and conditions set out in this prospectus.  

Time and date of opening and closing of the public issue

The public share offer will open at 8.00 am on Monday 5th September 2005 and will close at 5:00 pm on Friday 23rd September 2005.
Eligibility

All members of TCCIA are allowed to participate in this public issue.

Authorizations

14,000,000 ordinary shares are being issued to the members of TCCIA, who are invited to apply on the application form attached to this prospectus or on an application form available from an authorized receiving agent.

Subject to approval of the CMSA, the directors of TCCIA Co. reserve the right to accept or refuse any application, either in whole or in part, or to accept some applications in full and others in part, or to abate any or all applications in such manner as they may determine, so that each applicant is treated in a fair and equitable manner.

Application for Listing

A listing of TCCIA Co. shares on the Dar es Salaam Stock Exchange has not been applied for because TCCIA Co. is a new company without track record required for listing at the DSE. Currently, there is no exit mechanism. It is intended that a listing of TCCIA Co. shares at the DSE will be sought within the foreseeable future.

Allotment Policy

The offer’s primary objective is to provide an opportunity for TCCIA members to purchase 5% of NMB shares. In case of over-subscription, all applicants shall be allotted in full the number of shares applied for, provided that the aggregate subscription does not exceed the total authorized share capital.  

In the event TCCIA Co. shareholders are not able to fully subscribe for the shares offered, NICO will be allowed to buy the remaining portion of 5% of NMB shares offered to TCCIA Co.
Withholding Tax on securities income

TCCIA Co. is required to act as an agent for the Tanzania Revenue Authority in deduction of withholding tax on dividends payable to its shareholders. Under the Income Tax Act, 2004, the current withholding tax on dividend income for unlisted companies is 10%.
Experts’ Consent

Ernst & Young (Lead Advisors); Tanzania Securities Limited (Sponsoring Broker); Chipeta & Associate (Legal Advisors); Deloitte (Auditors); Matena Associates, (Reporting Accountants); CRDB Bank Limited (Lead Receiving Banker); Africa Banking Corporation (T) Limited (Investment Adviser) and Maira & Company Advocates (Company Secretary and Transfer Secretary) have given and not withdrawn their written consent to the inclusion of their names and reports, where applicable, and reference thereto in the form and context in which they appear in the Prospectus.

1.3
MATERIAL CONTRACTS

There is no material contract, which has been entered into by TCCIA Co. since its establishment other than the Lease Agreement for occupation of TCCIA Co. offices at Twiga House, Samora Avenue, 2nd Floor.

1.4
LEGAL OPINION

The legal advisers have given a legal opinion as to the completeness and compliance of this prospectus in all respects with the requirement of all legislation applicable to this public issue.  A summarized legal opinion is set out in section E of this prospectus.

1.5
LITIGATION STATEMENT

TCCIA Co. is not engaged in any litigious matters at the date of this prospectus.

1.6
REGISTRATION OF PROSPECTUS

A copy of this prospectus was registered by the Registrar of Companies in terms of Section 35 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 212) and Section 131 of the Capital Markets and Securities Act 1994 (as amended) together with:

a. the written consents of the lead advisers, legal advisers, reporting accountants, auditors, investment advisers, lead receiving bank and the sponsoring stockbroker to act in the capacities stated and to their names being stated in this prospectus. None of these consents have been withdrawn prior to registration; and,

b. the written consent of Matena Associates to the inclusion in this prospectus of its report in the form and context in which it appears, which consent likewise had not been withdrawn prior to registration.

1.7
DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION

Copies of the following documents will be available for inspection at TCCIA head office, Dar es Salaam,  at any time during business hours on weekdays (official Tanzanian public holidays excluded) prior to the close of the issue date at 5:00 pm Friday 23rd September 2005.

a) The Memorandum and Articles of Association of TCCIA Investment Company Limited.

b) The appended unaudited financial statements of TCCIA for the period ended 30th June 2005;

c) Consent letters from advisors;

d) TCCIA Co. Board Resolution;

e) Annual General Meeting resolutions of TCCIA members;

f) The signed letter of legal opinion prepared by Chipeta & Associates referred to in the paragraph above under the heading “Legal Opinion”;

g) List of current TCCIA members.

h) List of existing TCCIA Co. shareholders
i) Business Plan for National Microfinance Bank (NMB) Limited

1.8
SALE OF SHARES

The shares issued in terms of this prospectus will be issued at the expense of the Company.

The directors based on the number of subscriptions actually received will allocate all shares issued in terms of this prospectus.

The Share Certificates will be posted by registered mail directly on or about Monday 31st October 2005.  The cost of postage will be born by CRDB Bank. 

Estimated Share Offer Expenses


Category








    
        TZS 
Prospectus Evaluation Fees (CMSA)
  

                                                 
     7,000,000 

Advisory Fees          
                                                



                60,000,000 

Printing and Distribution







                  6,000,000
TOTAL





                                                                     73,000,000

All fees will be paid out of the proceeds of the share offer.

TCCIA Co. has mobilized district offices to coordinate share sales and remit the funds and forms to CRDB bank at the regional level.

Applicants are not required to pay commission.
E2:
COMPANY STATUTORY INFORMATION

2.1
DIRECTORS
	NAMES
	RESIDENTIAL ADDRESS
	POSTAL ADDRESS
	OCCUPATION

	ARISTABLUS ELVIS MUSIBA 
	Plot No. 448 Msonge Street, Mikocheni B, Dar es Salaam
	P. O. Box 19966 Dar es Salaam
	Accountant

	MARIOT MARGESON KALANJE
	House No. Ms 912, Old UNDP Estate, Oysterbay, Dar es Salaam
	P.O. Box 9713

Dar Es Salaam.
	Economist

	JULIUS MATIKO MWITA MATIKO
	Plot No. 68 Block B Mkoani, Kibaha
	P.O. Box 30226 Kibaha
	Development Consultant

	ALOYCE MWAMANGA.
	Mwanjelwa Block T 164 Mbeya
	P. O. Box 1892 Mbeya
	Civil Engineer

	JUMBE HAMAD MENYE
	Raskazone, Near Buraska Mosque, Tanga
	P. O. Box 233 Tanga
	Teacher cum Accountant

	PETER CHISAWILLO
	Block C House No. 373 Misufini, Morogoro
	P.O. Box 1278 Morogoro
	Mechanical Engineering

	DANIEL ENOCK MAHENDELA MASANJA
	Farm No. 403 Miyuni, Dodoma;

Plot No. 91 Iringa Hazina X, Dodoma
	P.O. Box  1267 Dodoma
	Civil Engineer

	AMRAN KHERI BATENGA
	25 K, Kenyatta Road, Mwanza
	P.O. Box 228

Mwanza
	Businessman

	TAMIM AMIJEE

	46 Livingstone Street/Pemba Street Dar es Salaam
	P.O. Box 10452

Dar Es Salaam
	Business Consultant

	ESTHER KANYAMALE MWAMASO
	Plot No. 596 NHC Mburahati, Dare s Salaam
	P. O. Box 13135

Dar Es Salaam
	Businesswoman


2.2
SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORIZED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL

The authorized and paid up share capital of TCCIA Co. at 29th April 2005 was as follows:

Authorized share capital 40,000,000 of 250/=each 
 
         10,000,000,000/=

Paid up share capital 855,960 of 250/= each                               

213,990,000/=

SHAREHOLDERS

The shareholding before the offer is shown below:



TZS
893 Current Members               





213,990,000/= 



Anticipated shareholding after the offer is as shown below:

TCCIA Members including current Shareholders
                                    3,713,990,000/=  

ALTERATIONS TO AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL

There have been no alterations to the authorised share capital of TCCIA Co. in the five-year period preceding this offer.

2.2.3
VOTING RIGHTS

As noted in section 59 page 46 – Extracts of the Articles and Memorandum of Association, at any General Meeting, any member who is present or represented by proxy shall have one vote for every share of which he is the holder. 

OPTIONS OR PREFERENTIAL RIGHTS IN RESPECT OF SHARES

There is no contract or arrangement, either actual or proposed, whereby any option or preferential right of any kind has been or will be granted to any person to subscribe for any shares in TCCIA Co.

SHARES HELD BY ADVISERS

None of the advisers as set on page 4 of this Prospectus holds any shares in or has agreed to acquire shares in TCCIA Co. at the date of issue of this Prospectus.

BORROWINGS

TCCIA Investment Company Limited is a new company and has not borrowed any funds.

DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL IMMOVABLE PROPERTY

TCCIA Co. does not own any immovable property as of the date of issue of this prospectus.

2.3
EXTRACTS FROM THE MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
2.3.1
MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

CORE OBJECTS

Clauses 3.1 to 3.26 of the Memorandum of Association of the Company spell out the objects for which the Company is incorporated. They are broad ranging but the principal objects are in sub-clause 3.1, 3.2 and 3.7 which read in full as follows:

3.1 “To deal in all investment matters and activities including stocks and shares, bonds, acquisitions, promotions, mergers, flotation, underwriting, transfers, swap arrangements, guarantees and mortgages, portfolio management and all money and capital market operations”.

3.7  “To invest the monies of the company not immediately required in such manner, other than in the shares of this company, as may from time to time be determined.”.
2.3.2
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

TRANSFER OF SHARES

Pursuant to clause 3 of the Articles of Association and subject to any restrictions imposed under the law as may be applicable, any member may transfer all or any of his shares by an instrument of transfer in the usual common form or in any other form which the directors may approve. Clause 3 spells out that:
3.
The Company is public Company and accordingly;

a) The right to transfer shares is not restricted;

b) The minimum number of  members is seven and the maximum number is not limited; PROVIDED THAT where two or more persons hold one or more shares in the Company jointly, they shall, for the purposes of this Article, be treated as a single member;

c) Any invitation to the public to subscribe for any shares or debentures of the company is allowed;

CERTIFICATES

7.
Every person whose name is entered as a member in the Register of Members shall, upon payment of such fees as the Directors shall from time to time determine, be entitled  to receive within  two  months after allotment or lodgement of transfer  (or  within  such  other  period as the conditions of issue  shall provide) a certificate  under the seal of the company specifying the share or shares held by him and the amount paid up thereon.

PROVIDED that the Company shall not be bound to register more than three persons as the joint holders of any shares (except in the case of executors or trustees of a deceased member), and, in case of a share or shares held jointly by several persons, the company shall not be bound further to issue more than one certificate therefore. 

8.
Depository Receipt issued shall be a prima facie evidence of title to the shares issued in lieu of the share certificate. PROVIDED that a shareholder may opt for share certificate instead of a Depository Receipt and the shareholder shall only be issued with one of the two and not both.

9.
If a Share Certificate shall be worn out, defaced, lost or destroyed, it may be renewed on payment of a fee of TZS 1,000 or such other sum as the Directors may hereinafter determine and on such terms as to evidence, indemnity and the payment of out of pocket expenses of the company for investing evidence, as the Directors may think fit.
FORFEITURE OF SHARES

The company’s shares can be forfeited if a member fails to pay fully for such shares. The modalities of forfeiture are set out in clauses 28 to 32 of the articles, which are reproduced below:

28.
If a member fails to pay any call or instalment of a call on the day appointed for payment hereof, the Directors may, at any time thereafter during such time as any part of such call or instalment remains unpaid, serve a notice on him requiring payment of so much of the call the whole or any part of any call or instalment as is unpaid together with any interests which may have accrued.

29. 
The notice shall name a further day (not earlier than the expiration of fourteen days from the date of notice) on or before which the payment required the notice is to be made and shall state that in the event of non-payment at or before the time appointed the shares in respect of which the call was made will be liable to be forfeited.

30.
If the requirements of any such notice as aforesaid are not complied with, any share in respect of which the notice has been given may at any time thereafter, before the payment required by the notice has been made, be forfeited by a resolution of the Directors to that effect.

31.
A forfeited share may be sold or otherwise disposed of such terms and in such manner as the Directors think fit, and at any time before a sale or disposition the forfeiture may be cancelled on such terms as the Directors think fit.

32.
A person whose shares have been forfeited shall cease to be a member in respect of the forfeited shares but shall, notwithstanding remain liable to pay to the Company all moneys which, at the date of the forfeiture, were recently payable by him to the Company in respect of the shares, but his liability shall cease if and where the Company receives payment in full of the nominal amount of the shares.

CONVERSION OF SHARES INTO STOCK

35.
The company may, by ordinary resolution, convert any paid-up shares into stock, and reconvert any stock into paid-up shares of any denomination.

ALTERATION OF CAPITAL

The share capital of the Company can be increased by an Ordinary Resolution, as spelt out in clause 39 of the Articles, which reads as follows:

39.
The company may from time to time by Ordinary Resolution increase the share capital by such sum, to be divided into shares of such amount, as the resolution shall prescribe.

GENERAL MEETING

The relevant provisions in the Articles of Association relating to the Annual General Meeting are as follows:

44.
A general meeting shall be held once in every Calendar year at such time (not being more than fifteen months after the holding of the last preceding general meeting) and place as may be determined by the Directors.

45.
All such general meetings shall be called Annual General Meetings and all other general meetings shall be called Extraordinary Meetings.

46.
The Directors may call an Extraordinary General Meeting whenever they think fit and shall, on requisition in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Ordinance, to proceed to convene an Extra Ordinary General Meeting as required by the Ordinance. In an Extra Ordinary General Meeting called in pursuance of a requisition, no business other than that stated in the requisition, as the object of the meeting shall be transacted. 

49.
All business shall be deemed special, that is transacted at any extraordinary meeting and all that is transacted at an ordinary meeting, with the exception of sanctioning a dividend, the consideration of the accounts, balance sheets and the ordinary report of the directors and other officers in the place of those retiring by rotation, and the fixing of remuneration of the auditors.

50.
No business shall be transacted at any General Meeting unless a quorum is present when the meeting proceeds to business, save, as herein otherwise provided, the quorum for any meeting of members shall be the presence of one third of members holding more than 33% of the issued shares entitled to vote at such meeting personally or by proxy. All resolutions proposed at shareholders meeting shall be deemed adopted if passed by a simple majority of votes.

VOTES OF MEMBERS

59.
Subject to any rights or restrictions for the time being attached to any class or classes of shares, on a show of hands every member present in person shall have one vote. On a poll every member shall have one vote for each share of which he is the holder.

DIRECTORS

69.
Unless and until otherwise determined the company in general meeting, Board of Directors of the company shall consist of not less than seven (7) and not more than twelve (12) directors.

70(1) 
The remuneration of the directors shall from time to time be determined by the company in General Meeting.

QUORUM OF BOARD MEETINGS

72.
A quorum at Board Meetings shall be at least 51% of the person who at the time are directors.

73.
At all Board Meetings, each director shall have one vote on all matters and in the event of a deadlock the chairman shall have a casting vote.

74.
The notice period for convening a meeting of the board shall be 14 days, unless otherwise agreed by the directors, save in cases of urgency, when the notice period may be lesser than that.

75.
A Director may hold any office or place under the company (other than the office of the Auditor) and may act in a professional capacity for the company or as a director of a company subsidiary to the company in connection with his office of Directors, on such terms as to remuneration as the Board may approve, and no director shall be disqualified by his office from contracting with the company, provided that the nature of the interest of the Director in such contract or proposed contract or arrangement shall be declared at the meeting of the Directors at which the question is first taken into consideration, if his interests then exist or in any other case at the next meeting of the Directors held after he became interested. A general notice given to the Board by a Director to the effect that he is a member of on beneficially interest in a specified firm or company and is to be regarded as interest in any contracts or arrangements which may be made with that firm or company after the date of such notice shall be sufficient declaration of interest under this Article. 

78.
The Directors may exercise all the power of the company to borrow money, and to mortgage or charge its undertaking, property and uncalled capital, or any part thereof and to issue debentures, debenture stock, and other securities whether outright or as securities for any debt, liability or obligation of the company or of any third party. PROVIDED that the company may not make a loan to any director or to all close relative of Director and may not give any guarantee or provide any security for any such loan made by any other person.

POWERS AND DUTIES OF DIRECTORS

79.
The business of the Company shall be managed by the Directors who pay all expenses incurred in getting up and registered the Company, and may exercise all such powers of the Company, as are not by the Ordinance, or by these articles, required to be exercised by the Company in general meeting, subject, nevertheless, to any regulation, of these articles, to the provisions of the Ordinance and to such regulations, being not inconsistent with the aforesaid regulations or provisions, as may be prescribed by the Company in general meeting but  no regulations made by the Company in general meeting  shall  invalidate any  prior  act of the Directors which  would  have been  valid  if that  regulation had  not  been made. 

PROCEEDS OF DIRECTORS
84. 
The Directors may meet together for the dispatch of business, adjourn and otherwise regulate their meetings as they think fit. Questions arising at any meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes. In case of any equality of votes the Chairman shall have a second vote.

85.
The continuing Directors may act notwithstanding any vacancy in their body, but if, and so long as their number is reduced below the number fixed by or pursuant to these articles as the quorum of Directors the continuing Directors may act for the purpose of increasing the number of Directors to that number or summoning a General Meeting of the Company but for no other purpose.

86.
The directors may delegate any of their powers to committees consisting of such members of their body as they think fit. Any committee so formed shall, in the exercise of the powers as delegated, conform to any regulation that may be imposed on them by the Directors.

DIVIDENDS

92. 
The company in general meeting may declare dividends, but no dividend shall exceed the amount recommended by the directors.

93. 
The Directors may from time to time pay to the members such interim dividends as it appears to the directors to be justified by the profits of the company.

94. 
No dividends shall be paid otherwise than out of profits.

95.
 Subject to the rights of the persons, if any, entitled to shares with special rights as to dividends, all dividends shall be declared and paid according to the amounts paid on the shares, but if and so long as nothing is paid up on any of the shares in the company, dividends may be declared and paid according to the amounts of the shares. No amount paid on a share in advance or calls shall, while carrying interest, be treated for the purpose of these articles as paid on the shares. 

WINDING UP

114.
If the company shall be wound up, the liquidator may, with the sanction of an extraordinary resolution of the company and any other sanction required by the Ordinance, if any, and having due regard to the respective rights of the holders of different classes of shares to which special rights are attached, divide amongst the members in specie or kind the whole or any part of the assets of the company and may for such purpose set such values as he deems fair upon property to be divided as aforesaid and may determine how such division shall be carried out as between the members or different classes of members. The liquidator may, with like sanction, vest the whole or any part of such assets in trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of the contributors as he (the liquidator) may think fit but so that no member shall be compelled to accept any shares or other securities whereon there is any liability.

115.
On the Voluntary liquidation of the Company, no commission or fee shall be paid to a liquidator unless it shall have been ratified by Shareholders. The amount of such payment shall be notified to all shareholders at least seven days prior to the meeting at which it is to be considered.

2.4
SUMMARY OF LEGAL OPINION


Ref. No LOC&A/TCCIA-GEN/01/2004.                                                          


Attorneys at Law,

Notaries Public,

Commissioners for Oaths.
25th  July 2005

Executive Director,

Tanzania Chamber of Commerce 

Industry and Agriculture,

P. O. Box 9731,

DAR ES SALAAM.

Sir,

RE: LEGAL OPINION IN RESPECT OF INVESTMENT IN BUYING SHARES IN NATIONAL MICROFINANCE BANK
       (NMB) THROUGH INITIAL PUBLIC OFFER (IPO)

On instructions, of TCCIA Investment Company Limited, we Law Offices of Chipeta & Associates, a duly registered law firm and Corporate law Consultants, have acted as legal advisors for TCCIA Investment Company Limited (herein referred to as “the Company”) in relation to the proposed investment in the purchase of 5% shares of National Microfinance Bank (NMB) through Initial Public Offer (I.P.O.).

This opinion is given intending it to be incorporated in the prospectus of the company (herein referred to as “the Prospectus”) to be issued for purposes stated hereinabove.

In issuing this legal opinion we have examined all relevant documents, including but not limited to the following:

1. A certified copy of the Certificate of Incorporation of the Company numbered 38280 dated 9th day of November 1999.

2. The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.

3. The records at the Office of the Registrar of Companies.

4. The Resolution of the Extra Ordinary Meeting of the shareholders of the Company passed on 18th July 2005 resolving and authorizing the Company to invest in buying shares of National Microfinance Bank through Initial Public Offer.
The Company is a duly incorporated public limited liability company.  It was incorporated on the 9th November 1999 with a Certificate of Title No 38280. The registered office of the Company is situated at Samora Avenue, Twiga House.  The Company has complied with all mandatory provisions of the laws governing the establishment and operations of limited liability companies.  It has been established that the Company has a good corporate standing, and there has not been instituted or issued any winding up order or similar legal proceedings against it.  There is not threatened or pending litigation by or against the Company in any court of law in Tanzania as on the date of this opinion.

With regard to its incorporation and operations, the Company has satisfactorily complied with all relevant statutory stipulations to enable it to be a body corporate with distinct personality and able to carry on its objectives.

Under its Memorandum and Articles of Association the Company is authorized to carry on investment schemes which include but are not limited to, purchase of shares, acquiring and managing business entities in banking and finance sector.  To the best of our knowledge, the Company has in place all relevant licences, approvals and consents that are of material relevance to its business operations.

The purchase of shares in the NMB through Initial Public Offer (IPO) has been duly and validly authorized by the Company and no other corporate proceedings or approvals on part of the Company are necessary to authorize the transaction.

The Company being a body corporate is entitled to own its assets, to undertake its business operations in accordance with its objectives, to enter into contracts, and to perform and observe its obligations under the agreements.  It has complied with all required action on its part to authorize the execution, delivering and performance of contracts validly executed.

The Company is a lawful tenant of the property leased to it and the lease agreement relating thereto was properly executed and delivered, thus enforceable as per its terms and conditions.

None of the Directors is or has been personally interested in any transaction which is described in the prospectus or which is of unusual nature or contain unusual terms or conditions or which is material to the operations or status of company, which was effected during or prior to 30th June 2005.

Neither advisers nor consultants in the transaction hold shares in the Company.

The purchase of shares in the National Microfinance Bank through Initial Public Offer (IPO) as intended by the Company does not conflict or breach and shall not conflict or breach applicable law, rules or regulations or binding obligations in any agreement or understanding to which the Company is a party or is bound by, which would solely or combined, impair the validity of this transaction.
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Yours Sincerely,

LAW OFFICES OF CHIPETA & ASSOCIATES 
APPENDIX I:
MEMBERS OF TCCIA

REGION

NUMBER OF MEMBERS

DISTRICT BRANCHES

ARUSHA




263


1

KAGERA




321 


4

KIGOMA




345 


2

MANYARA




68 


2

MBEYA





403 


3

DAR ES SALAAAM



133 


2

IRINGA





535 


3

COAST 




328 


3

KILIMANJARO




230 


4

MTWARA




293 


3

RUKWA




235 


1

SHINYANGA




237 


5

TABORA




230 


1

DODOMA




602 


3

LINDI





160 


1

MARA





568 


3

MOROGORO




522 


2

MWANZA




528


2

RUVUMA




684 


3

SINGIDA




379 


2

TANGA





478 


3


TOTAL MEMBERS



7,542

           53

Note:
The detailed list of members can be obtained from TCCIA head office.

APPENDIX II:
WHO TO CONTACT FOR ASSISTANCE
Further copies of this Prospectus can be obtained from all CDRB Bank branches (as indicated below) and all TCCIA Regional and District Chambers (as listed on page 51 of this prospectus):


	S/N
	BRANCH NAME
	POSTAL ADDRESS
	PHYSICAL ADDRESS
	TELEPHONE NO.
	FAX NO.

	1
	Tower Branch
	P. O. Box 2302, DSM
	Garden Avenue/Ohio Street, PPF Tower Building.
	022 2129603/2126762/4/6
	022 2129604

	2
	Holland House Branch
	P.O. Box 71960, DSM
	Samora Avenue, Holland House.
	 022 2123297/2110690
	022 2110691

	3
	Lumumba Branch
	P.O. Box 2318, DSM
	Ushirika Building, Near Mnazi Mmoja Bus Stand
	022 2180079-81
	028 2182334

	4
	Vijana Branch
	P.O. Box 10876, DSM
	Lumumba Street, Opposite Umoja Wa Vijana Building.
	0222181453/2184566
	022 2181687

	5
	Kijitonyama Branch
	P.O. Box 34654, KJ'NYAMA
	Ali Hassani Mwinyi Road, Millenium Tower.
	022 2771987/8,9
	022 2772074

	6
	Morogoro Branch
	P.O. Box352, MOROGORO
	NHC Building, Old DSM Road, Near Shan Cinema, Opposite Msafiri Pharmaceutical
	023 2603676/2600025
	 023 2604403

	7
	Dodoma Branch
	P.O. Box 401, DODOMA
	Kuu Street, Jengo La CDA
	026 2322840/2322842
	026 2322841

	8
	Arusha Branch
	P.O. Box 3150, ARUSHA
	Along Sokoine Road/Friends Corner, Near Mcmoody Restaurant.
	 027 2507239/2507241
	027 2503089

	9
	Meru Branch
	P.O. Box  3150, ARUSHA
	Boma Road, Near Arusha Municipal, Opposite AICC Building.
	027 2548315
	027 2544313

	10
	Iringa Branch
	P. O. Box 168, IRINGA
	Along Market Or Sokoni Street
	026 2702862/2702795
	 026 2702861

	11
	Moshi Branch
	P.O. Box 1302, MOSHI
	Kahawa Building, Opposite Nbc Branch Moshi, Railway Street.
	027 275067/2752477
	027 2751005

	12
	Kigoma Branch
	P.O. Box 575, KIGOMA
	Junction – Lumumba Road And Bango Road
	028 2802249/2804730
	028 2804356


	13
	Mbeya Branch
	P.O. Box 315,  MBEYA
	Bima House, Karume Road.
	025 2504367/2504389
	025 2504315

	14
	Shinyanga Branch
	P.O. Box 397, SHINYANGA
	Mboya Street.
	028 2763153
	 028 2762297

	15
	Tanga Branch
	P.O. Box 1180, TANGA
	Independence Avenue/Clock Tower, Ocean Breeze/Soko La Uzunguni.
	27 2644353/2647763
	027 2644270

	16
	Mwanza Branch
	P.O. Box 1330, MWANZA
	Kenyatta Road, Opposite KNCU
	028 2500053/2501031
	028 2500040

	17
	Nyerere Branch
	P.O. Box  1330, MWANZA
	Nyerere Road, Adjacent To Bank Of Tanzania Branch.
	028 2500848, 2500457
	 

	18
	Musoma Branch
	P.O. Box 386, MUSOMA
	Mkendo Street.
	028 2622484/2622192
	028 2622891

	19
	Bukoba Branch
	P.O. Box 1804, BUKOBA
	Kashozi Road, Opposite Bukoba Fibre Center
	Tel. 028 2220909/2220480
	028 2220909

	20
	Songea Branch
	P.O. Box 121, SONGEA
	Njombe Road
	025 2602962
	025 2602961

	21
	Sumbawanga
	P.O. Box 367, S'WANGA
	Mpanda Road
	025 2802165/2802266
	025 2802342

	22
	Mtwara Branch
	P.O. Box 182, MTWARA
	Tanu Street, Mamcu Buiding, Near Maposeni.
	023 2333572/2333466
	023 2333572

	23
	Lindi Branch
	P.O. Box 266, LINDI
	Near Round About, Sokoni Or Market Street, Opposite Paramount Store.
	 023 2202385/2202254
	023 2202385

	24
	Singida Branch
	P.O. Box  135, SINGIDA
	Sokoni Street (Formerly Boma Street), Adjacent TANESCOand Uhamiaji.
	 026 2502435/2502619
	 025 2502357

	25
	Tabora Branch
	P.O. Box 889, TABORA
	Jamhuri Street, NSSF Building, Near RC.
	 026 2604451/2604035
	 026 2604451

	26
	Kahama Branch
	P.O. Box 609, KAHAMA
	Kahama Town, Ngaya Road, Samanga Building, Near Kahama Primary School.
	028 2710049/2710026
	028 2710086

	27
	Bugando Agency
	P.O.Box 1330, MWANZA
	In Bugando Hospital Compound
	 028 2500050
	028 2500105

	28
	Hai Agency
	P.O. Box 96, MOSHI
	Hai Town
	027 2756190
	027 2751005

	29
	Sua Agency
	P.O. Box 3150, M'GORO
	Sokoine University Compound
	 023 2601154
	 

	30
	Karagwe Agency
	P.O. Box 1804, BUKOBA
	Karagwe Town
	028 222158/2223327
	028 2223327


APPENDIX III:
SAMPLE APPLICATION FORM









A copy of this prospectus to which this application is attached was registered in terms of section 35 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 212) and section 131 of the Capital Markets and Securities Act 1994 (as amended).

Please refer to instructions overleaf before completing this form.

This form, once duly completed should be submitted, together with TZS Cash or TZS Banker’s cheque (crossed “not negotiable”) or TZS Banker’s draft in favour of “TCCIA Investment Company Share Offer”, by hand to CRDB Bank Branches to be received by not later than 5:00 pm Friday 23rd September  2005.

Subject to CMSA’s approval, the Directors reserve the right to reject any application, in whole or in part, particularly if the instruction over the leaf and as set out in the attached Prospectus are not complied with.

To the Directors

I/We the undersigned, confirm that, having read the Prospectus, hereby irrevocably apply for and request you accept my/our application for the under mentioned number of ordinary shares in TCCIA Investment Company Limited at TZS 250/= per ordinary share or any lesser number that may, as per your allotment policy presented on page 11 and page 39 of the prospectus, be allotted to me/us in terms of the Prospectus and subject to the Articles. I/We enclose payments as required in favour of “TCCIA Investment Company Limited”, for the appropriate amount due in terms of this application. 

	1. Signature (s)
	2. Date

	APPLICANT’S DETAILS

	3. Title

Mr/Mrs/Ms/Dr/Prof
	4.  Name

     Surname/Company name



	5. First Name(s) in full ONLY for individuals

	

	6. Telephone number if applicable
	

	7. Passport/Identity no.  or Licence no. for 
    companies)
	

	8. Postal address (P. O. Box) address
	

	9. Region
	

	COLLECTION INSTRUCTIONS

	10. Please tick relevant box to indicate how   you wish to receive your Share Certificate. 
	Posted to me at the address given on the application form

Made available for collection at the bank branch at which this application was submitted 

	Note: Share certificate will only be collectable on presentation of acceptable identification and the receipt tear-off below. 

	PAYMENT DETAILS

	11. Number of Shares: 

      Minimum application is 100 shares and in multiples of 10 shares thereafter.
	(Figures Only)

	12. Value (TZS): 

        Total amount in TZS cash, TZS banker’s cheque or TZS banker’s draft for

         the shares applied for above @ TZS 250/= per share
	TZS


Signature(s)






Date:


Please detach along the perforation and retain this portion for your records


	SERIAL NUMBER      00001
	Processing Branch Code No.

	Name(s) of applicant or institution(s)
	

	Total Shares Requested
	

	Total Funds Submitted (TZS)
	

	Place Authorized receiving branch’s stamp here
	


INSTRUCTIONS

1) Please, refer to particulars of the Offer as set out in the attached Prospectus. Applicants if necessary should consult their stockbrokers, bankers, or other investment and legal advisors regarding the completion of this form;

2) Postal applications will not be accepted;

3) There are no maximum limits on the value of shares that may be applied for.

4) All shares allotted in terms of this Prospectus will be transferred to successful applicants through their respective chambers;

5) This form, when duly completed with payment, should be submitted to any branch of CRDB Bank Limited;

6) Share Certificates will be available for collection from the authorized collecting branch through which the application was made;

7) Subscribers will be required to produce acceptable identification and the receipt at the foot of the application form to receive share certificate;

8) Application must be for a minimum of 100 ordinary shares and multiples of 10 shares thereafter;

9) Each application must be accompanied by a TZS Bankers cheque, TZS Bankers draft or TZS Cash and made payable to “TCCIA Investment Company Share Offer”;

10) Non TCCIA members are not permitted to apply for shares;

11) All successful applicants will receive a share certificate as proof of their shareholding in TCCIA Investment Company Limited;

12) All applications are irrevocable once submitted and are bound by the terms and conditions outlined in the Prospectus;

13) Interest will not be paid to applicants on application funds;

14) In the event of a discrepancy between the number of shares applied and the value thereof, the Directors may in their sole discretion, adjust the number of shares to correspond with the value received for their application;

15) Receipts (foot of application form) should be retained by investor after the Receiving bank has completed the information. Applications will only be regarded as complete when the relevant TZS cash or TZS banker’s cheques or TZS Banker’s draft has been cleared;

16) No documentary evidence of capacity to apply need accompany this application, but the directors reserve the right to call upon any application to submit such evidence in support of a person’s authority to sign this form, either in their own, or in a representative capacity;

17) The Directors reserve the right to accept or reject any application form which has not been completed in accordance with the conditions and instructions contained herein;

18) All alterations on the application (other than the deletion of alternatives) must be authenticated by full signature of the applicant;

19) Nominee companies may apply of behalf of principals. The number of securities applied for on each principal’s behalf must be furnished and each applicant will be treated as separate application and shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the Prospectus;

20) The illustrative number of shares applied for and corresponding applications monies are shown below:

	Number of 

Shares
	Application 

Value (TZS)
	Number 

Of shares
	Application

Value (TZS)

	100
	25,000
	1,500
	375,000

	200
	50,000
	2,000
	500,000

	300
	75,000
	5,000
	1,250,000

	400
	100,000
	7,500
	1,875,000

	500
	125,000
	10,000
	2,500,000

	1,000
	250,000
	15,000
	3,750,000


SHARE APPLICATION






TCCIA Investment Company Limited

 Second Floor, Twiga House, Samora Avenue


 P.O. BOX 9713, Dar es Salaam, TANZANIA

Tel: 
+255-22-2119436/2128136

 Fax: 
+255-22-2119437

Email:
hq@tccia.com
Website: www.tccia.com



Auditors





DELLOITE.


10th Floor, PPF Tower


Corner of Ohio Street & Garden Avenue


P. O. Box 1559


Dar es Salaam, Tanzania


Tel: +255-22-2116006


Fax: +255-22-2116379


Email: � HYPERLINK "mailto:deloitte@deloitte.co.tz" ��deloitte@deloitte.co.tz�








Company Secretary & Transfer Agent





MAIRA & COMPANY ADVOCATES


Suite No. 5 Umoja wa Vijana,


 Morogoro Road


P. O. Box 2886


Dar es Salaam


Email: � HYPERLINK "mailto:mairaadvocate@yahoo.com" ��mairaadvocate@yahoo.com�








	





Reporting Accountants





Matena Associates


Accountants, Auditors and Tax Consultants


P. O. Box 21870, Dar es Salaam


Tel. 022 2130120


Fax. 022 2132583


E-mail: matena@africa online.co.tz











Receiving Bank and


Company Bankers


�


CRDB BANK LIMITED


Headquarters, Azikiwe Street


P. O. Box 268, Dar es Salaam


Tel: 255-22-2117441-7


Fax: +255-22-2113341


E-mail: � HYPERLINK mailto:crdb@raha.com ��crdb@raha.com�





Lead Adviser





�


Ernst & Young Advisory Services Limited


Utalii House,


36 Laibon Road, Oysterbay


P. O. Box 2475, Dar es Salaam


Tel:  +255-22-26666853/2667659


Fax: +255-22-2666869


E-mail: � HYPERLINK "mailto:EYAS@tz.ey.com" ��EYAS@tz.ey.com�











Sponsoring Broker


� EMBED PBrush  ���


TANZANIA SECURITIES LTD.


IPS Building, 7th Floor,


Azikiwe Street/Samora Avenue,


P. O. Box 9821, Dar es Salaam


Tel: +255-22-2112807


Fax: +255-22-2112809


E-mail: � HYPERLINK mailto:tsl@muchs.ac.tz ��tsl@muchs.ac.tz�





Legal Adviser








CHIPETA & ASSOCIATES


Plot No. 1343, Mwaya Road,


Masaki Area


P.O. Box 13811, Dar es Salaam,


Tel:    +255-22-2601255/6


Fax:   +255 -22-2601257


E-mail: � HYPERLINK "mailto:loca@raha.com" ��loca@chipetalaw.com�

















Investment Adviser


�


AFRICAN BANKING CORPORATION (T) LIMITED


Barclays House, 1st Floor


Ohio Street/Ali H. Mwinyi Road


P. O. Box 31, Dar es Salaam


Tel: 022-2119302 – 4/2119422 – 4


Fax: 022-2112402


Email: � HYPERLINK "mailto:abctz@africanbankingcorp.com" ��abctz@africanbankingcorp.com�








Board of Directors





Investment Committee





Chief Executive Officer





Chief Accountant





Administrative Manager





Investment Manager





Deloitte & Touche


Certified Public Accountants (Tanzania)


10th Floor, PPF Tower


Corner of Ohio Street & Garden Avenue


P. O. Box 1559


Dar es Salaam, TANZANIA








A member firm of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu





Deloitte ●





CRDB BANK, HEAD OFFICE


Office Accommodation Scheme Building, Azikiwe Street 


P.O. Box 268, Dar es Salaam


Tel.022 2117442-7


Fax: 022 2116714


E-mail: crdb@crdb.com





TCCIA INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

















Collecting Agent


�





CRDB BANK LIMITED


Headquarters, Azikiwe Street


P. O. Box 268, Dar es Salaam


Tel. 022 2117441-7


Fax: 022 2113341


E-mail: � HYPERLINK mailto:crdb@raha.com ��crdb@raha.com�





Tel: + (255 – 22) 211 6006, 2115352


Fax: + (255 – 22) 211 6379


E-mail: � HYPERLINK "mailto:deloitte@deloitte.co.tz" ��deloitte@deloitte.co.tz�








LOC&A


ADVOCATES





LAW OFFICES OF


CHIPETA & ASSOCIATES





A member firm of


Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu














SERIAL NUMBER�
No. 00001�
�






FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY�
�
�
�
�
Branch Code�
Batch Header Number�
�






SHARE APPLICATION FORM

















� Source: “Privatization in Tanzania” Annual Review 2003/2004 and Action Plan 2004/2005 of PSRC, page 11


� Please, write at least three names in full.
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